

A GLOCHIDIAL HOST OF ALASMIDONTA RAVENELIANA (BIVALVIA: UNIONIDAE)¹

Mark E. Gordon
Tennessee Cooperative Fishery Research Unit
Department of Biology
P.O. Box 5114
Tennessee Technological University
Cookeville, Tennessee 38505
and
John R. Moorman
Department of Biology
University of Louisville
Louisville, Kentucky 40292

1 Table

Send proofs to first author

Abstract. A glochidial host for Alasmidonta raveneliana was identified through laboratory-induced infestations on fishes known to occur sympatrically with this mussel. Of 18 species of fish tested, metamorphosed juvenile mussels were recovered

only from the bands
↑

Sculpin Cottus carolinae ^{after} following ^{to} 19 ^{post-} 26 days ~~of~~ infestation.

Common name also

Integral to an understanding of the reproductive biology of freshwater mussels (Unionoidea) is the identification of glochidial hosts. The degree of host specificity can vary considerably among mussel species (Fuller, 1974; Gordon & Layzer, 1989; Hoggarth, 1992). Fish generally ~~have been implicated~~^{serve} as hosts, ~~however~~^{but}, some species of ~~relatively~~ common, widely-distributed fish exhibit a greater propensity to function in this capacity than more regionally-endemic species (Gordon et al., 1994). Because of declining mussel populations and the increasing rarity of many species, host identification ~~has~~^{ve} become an important component of mussel conservation and management programs. Our investigation examined the host relationships between ~~regionally occurring~~^{sympatric} fish ~~and~~^{species} Alasmidonta raveneliana (Lea, 1834), a mussel ~~now~~^{porflow} restricted to a ~~small section~~ of the upper Tennessee River drainage in ~~the Appalachian Mountains of~~ North Carolina and Tennessee.

MATERIALS AND METHODS

Host specificity for glochidia of Alasmidonta raveneliana was assessed through laboratory-induced infestations of fish following the procedure described in Gordon & Layzer (1993). Gravid Alasmidonta raveneliana were obtained (9 October, 1992) from the Little Tennessee River, at Dean Island, 2 km east of Oak Grove, Macon County, North Carolina. ~~Fish~~^{Eighteen species of} were collected by electrofishing from the Blackburn Fork and Spring Creek drainages of the Roaring River system, Jackson, Overton, and Putnam counties, Tennessee, and acclimated to tank conditions for one week prior to infestation.

meaning
status, flow-through?

RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

Of ^{the} 18 species of fish tested (Table 1), most ~~had~~ sloughed all glochidia during the first 6-10 days following infestation. Single, empty glochidial shells were recovered from Campostoma anomalum (Rafinesque, 1820), Hypentelium nigricans (Lesueur, 1817), Fundulus catenatus (Storer, 1846), Micropterus punctatus (Rafinesque, 1819), Etheostoma blennioides Rafinesque, 1819, E. caeruleum Storer, 1845, and E. simoterum (Cope, 1868) during the period of 16-19 days post-infestation. Although Cottus carolinae (Gill, 1861) shed rejected glochidia fairly consistently over this entire period, juvenile mussels (diagnosed by anterior and posterior adductor muscles and an actively moving foot) were recovered from this species ^{after} following 19 days of parasitism. Juvenile mussels continued to excyst from C. carolinae for an additional ⁷ seven days.

The annual reproductive cycle of Alasmidonta raveneliana ^{is similar to} ~~appears to approximate~~ that of A. atropurpurea (Rafinesque, 1831), an endemic of the Cumberland Plateau portion of the Cumberland River system. Spawning in both species occurs in early to mid-August, and infective glochidia develop by early October (Gordon, unpublished data). In A. atropurpurea, release of glochidia is delayed until the following March (Gordon & Layzer, 1993). Unlike A. atropurpurea which utilizes the cypriniform Hypentelium nigricans (Gordon & Layzer, 1993), the host for A. raveneliana is a ^{cottid} ~~perciform~~ species. The wide-spread A. marginata Say 1818 displays a dichopatric distribution relative to both and utilizes cypriniform and perciform species as hosts (Howard & Ansen, 1922). Although phylogenetic

congruence for host specificity between A. raveneliana and A. atropurpurea is not apparent, their host preferences ~~do~~ reflect a relationship with A. marginata. Another congener, A. viridis (Rafinesque, 1820), also utilizes Cottus carolinae and other perciforms (see Clarke & Berg, 1959; Zale & Neves 1982).

A general lack of congruency between overall distribution of mussels and their hosts (e.g., Gordon & Layzer, 1993) is illustrated by the highly endemic historical range of Alasmidonta raveneliana (see Clarke, 1981) and the wide distribution of Cottus carolinae. The occurrence of A. raveneliana in the poorly-buffered streams of the Appalachian Mountains is analogous to the situation of A. atropurpurea ^{in streams} of the Cumberland Plateau. Both species appear to be adapted to calcium-poor systems, are not distributed downstream in contiguous calcareous regions, and are replaced in those areas by A. marginata (Gordon & Layzer, 1993). Clarke (1981) considered A. raveneliana, A. atropurpurea, and A. marginata to be closely-related, with the latter a ^{possible} ~~hypothetical~~ progenitor of the other two species. The above relationships in conjunction with available information on unionoid reproduction (e.g., Fuller, 1974; Gordon & Layzer, 1989) suggest that closely-related species groups may utilize a relatively common pool of hosts, ^{whereas} and wide-spread species may employ a larger array of hosts than species ^{that} ~~which~~ are more geographically restricted.

LITERATURE CITED

- Clarke, A. H. 1981. The tribe Alasmidontini (Unionidae: Anodontinae), part 1: Pegias, Alasmidonta, and Arcidens.

- Smithson. Contrib. Zool., 326: 1-101.
- Clarke, A. H., & Berg, C. O. 1959. The freshwater mussels of central New York with an illustrated key to the species of Northeastern North America. Cornell Univ. Agric. Exp. Sta. Mem., 367: 1-79.
- Fuller, S. L. H. 1974. Clams and mussels (Mollusca: Bivalvia). In Hart, C. W., & Fuller, S. L. H., eds. Pollution ecology of freshwater invertebrates. Academic Press, New York, pp. 215-273.
- Gordon, M. E., & Layzer, J. B. 1989. Mussels (Bivalvia: Unionoidea) of the Cumberland River system: review of life histories and ecological relationships. U.S. Fish Wildl. Serv. Biol. Rep., 89(15): 1-99.
- Gordon, M. E., & Layzer, J. B. 1993. Glochidial host of Alasmidonta atropurpurea (Bivalvia: Unionoidea: Unionidae). Trans. Am. Microsc. Soc., 112: 145-150.
- Gordon, M. E., Layzer, J. B., & Madison, L. M. 1994. Glochidial host of Villosa taeniata (Mollusca: Unionoidea). Malacol. Rev., 27: in press.
- Hoggarth, M. A. 1992. An examination of the glochidial-host relationships reported in the literature for North American species of Unionacea (Mollusca: Bivalvia). Malacol. Data Net, 3: 1-30.
- Howard, A. D., & Ansen, B. J. 1922. Experiments in the parasitism of the Unionidae. J. Parasitol., 9: 70-84.
- Zale, A. V., & Neves, R. J. 1982. Identification of a fish host for Alasmidonta minor (Mollusca: Unionidae). Am. Midl. Nat., 107: 386-388.

FOOTNOTES

¹ Funding for this investigation was provided by the U.S. Forest Service, Asheville, North Carolina and the Center for Management, Utilization, and Protection of Water Resources, Tennessee Technological University.

Table 1. Species of fish subjected to laboratory-induced infestations of Alasmidonta raveneliana. Numbers in parentheses indicate the greatest number of days that glochidia were retained by ~~any particular~~ ^{the fish} species of fish; * denotes the period over which metamorphosed juvenile mussels were recovered.

<u>Campostoma anomalum</u> (10)	<u>Lepomis megalotis</u> (10)
<u>Cyprinella galactura</u> (6)	<u>Micropterus punctatus</u> (19)
<u>Notropis boops</u> (6)	<u>Micropterus salmoides</u> (10)
<u>Rhinichthys atratulus</u> (7)	<u>Etheostoma blennioides</u> (5)
<u>Hypentelium nigricans</u> (5)	<u>Etheostoma caeruleum</u> (19)
<u>Fundulus castenatus</u> (13)	<u>Etheostoma flabellare</u> (7)
<u>Ambloplites rupestris</u> (7)	<u>Etheostoma rufilineatum</u> (6)
<u>Lepomis cyanellus</u> (6)	<u>Etheostoma simoterum</u> (19)
<u>Lepomis macrochirus</u> (6)	<u>Cottus carolinae</u> (19-26)*

give common names also

Fish Species
Sci name common name

Days of attachment

Invertebrate Biology

continuing *Transactions of the American Microscopical Society*

A quarterly journal of the American Microscopical Society and the
Division of Invertebrate Zoology, American Society of Zoologists

Vicki Pearse, Editor
Institute of Marine Sciences
University of California, Santa Cruz
Santa Cruz CA 95064

Internet: vpearse@cats.ucsc.edu
Telephone: 408/459-5065
Fax: 408/459-4882

11 April, 1994

Richard J. Neves
U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service
Virginia Cooperative Fish & Wildlife Research Unit
Department of Fisheries & Wildlife Sciences
Virginia Polytechnic Institute & State University
Blacksburg, VA 24061-0321

Dear Dr. Neves:

Thank you for agreeing to review:

"Glochidial host of *Alasmidonta raveneliana* (Bivalvia: Unionidae)"
by Mark E. Gordon & John R. Moorman

I will depend on your candidly critical comments, in addition to your rankings of acceptability and interest. Please keep in mind as you read this paper the following sorts of criteria and include in your comments suggestions for improvement:

Level of detail is too much/too little. Material is suitably allocated into the different sections of the paper. Organization within each section is logical. Writing is active, direct, and succinct, not diffuse or wordy.

Abstract includes main conclusions and their significance.

Introduction includes sufficient review of relevant background and previous work. Scope and goals of paper are clear.

If methods are merely cited from another source, that source is familiar to you, readily available, and adequate.

Discussion deals with any inconsistencies, distinguishes conclusions from speculations, develops stimulating ideas and future directions.

Illustrations and data document the results, support the conclusions, and are neither scant nor excessive.

References are cited appropriately; no important ones have been missed.

I would encourage you to mark up the manuscript copy, but if you prefer just to mail or fax the reviewer's form, or to use e-mail, that would be fine. I appreciate your help and will hope to receive your review by 2 May.

Sincerely yours,



Vicki Pearse

Encl: manuscript, reviewer's form, postage-paid return envelope

Review of:

"Glochidial host of *Alasmidonta raveneliana* (Bivalvia: Unionidae)"
by Mark E. Gordon & John R. Moorman

Original Revision

Reviewer #

Please evaluate this manuscript: Is it acceptable for publication in IB? Is it of interest to the community of invertebrate biologists?

acceptable with minor revision.
 acceptable after major revision.
 unacceptable.

of wide & strong interest.
 of interest to majority.
 of interest to minority.
 of narrow or weak interest.

Comments (type onto this form or attach your printout; use extra pages as needed):

Only the above will be copied to authors. Please sign your review below.
Reviewers' names are kept confidential unless you mark the following options:

I do not wish to remain anonymous; give my name to the authors.
 You may publish my name in IB's annual listing of reviewers.

Signature:

Richard J. Neves

Date: *4/18/94*